

CONFERENCE TYPE: NI/A

Rock Hill Schools

Request for Proposal (RFP)

Solicitation Number
Date Issued
Procurement Officer
Phone
E-Mail Address

23-2416 RHSD (RHSD-2024-003)
February 7, 2024
Page Putnam
803-981-1054
PPutnam@rhmail.org

Wireless School Bus Services

DUE DATE (Opening Date/Time): Friday, March 8th, 2024 at 11:00 a.m.

LAST DAY FOR QUESTIONS: Monday, February 26th, 2024 at 11:00 a.m.

NUMBER OF PROPOSALS TO BE SUBMITTED: one (1) original UNBOUND copy, three (3) hard copies and one (1) USB drive must be hand delivered **or** mailed to the address below. One (1) additional copy must be submitted to Service Associates (see page 4).

SUBMIT YOUR OFFER TO THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS:

PHYSICAL MAILING ADDRESS:

Rock Hill Schools Procurement Services 386 East Black Street Rock Hill, SC 29730

Solicitation Number and Opening Date must appear on the envelope.

LOCATION: N/A

CONTENENCE	LOCATION.				
	Any addendum(s) will be posted at the following web address:				
ADDENDUM(S) http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us All questi		ons must be directed to:			
	2024Rockhill@district.us.com				
You must submi	t a signed copy of this form with your offer.	By submitting a bid or proposal, you agree to			
the following:					
Bound b	y the requirements, terms, stipulations, and	terms of the solicitation.			
Comply	with all applicable Federal and State Laws an	d Regulations relative to non-discrimination in			
employn	nent practices.				
 Not guilt 					
prices to	prices to be submitted.				
NAME OF OFFER	OR (Full legal name of business submitting the	OFFEROR'S TYPE OF ENTITY:			
offer)		(Check one)			
		☐ Sole Proprietorship			
		□ Partnership			
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE		□ Corporate entity (not tax-exempt)			
		☐ Tax exempt corporate entity			
(Person signing must be authorized to submit binding offer to		☐ Government entity (federal, state, or local)			
enter contract on	behalf of Offeror named above.)				

RFP# 23-2416 (RHSD-2024-003) Wireless Schoo	ol Bus Service	es				_	
TITLE				T	□ Other				
(Business title of person signing above)				_],	(See "Signing y	our Offer"	provision)		
PRINTED NAME (Printed name of person signing above)			DATE SIGNEI						
as the offeror legal entity. D entity, i.e., a s	above. An offer to not use the n separate corpora	may be submitte ame of a branc ation, partnershi	ed by only or h office or a ip, sole propi	ne legal entity. division of a la rietorship, etc.	The e	entity named as r entity if the br	the offeror i anch or divi	d with, the entity ident nust be a single and dis sion is not a separate	tinct legal
Incorporation		ON (If offeror is	s a corporation	on, identify the	Sta	te of	TAX IDEN	TIFICATION NUMB	EK:
				1					
HOME OFFICE ADDRESS (Address for offeror's home office / principal place of business)				NOTICE ADDRESS (Address to which all procurement and contract related notices should be sent.) (See "Notice" clause)					
				Area Code	N	umber	Ext.	Facsimile	
				E-mail A	ddı	ress		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
□ Payment Address same as Home Office Address □ Payment Address same as Notice Address (check only one)				 □ Order Address same as Home Office Address □ Order Address same as Notice Address (check only one) 					
Offerors ack	nowledges re			GMENT OF A			mber and	its date of issue.	
Addendum No.	Addendum Issue Date	Addendum No.	Addendur		ım	Addendum Issue Date	Addendu No.	m Addendum Iss	ue
Minority Pa	rticipation:	<u> </u>							
•	Certified Mirtification#_	nority Vendo	or - Yes 🗆	No □					
Are you a N	on SC Certifie	ed Minority V	endor - Ye	s no n					

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS	4
II.	TERMS AND CONDITIONS	8
III.	ADDITIONAL CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS	14
IV.	GLOSSARY OF TERMS	19
V.	INTRODUCTION	21
VI.	GOALS AND OBJECTIVES	21
VII.	BACKGROUND	21
VIII.	SCOPE OF SERVICES	22
IX.	SERVICE PROVIDER REQUIREMENTS	23
Χ.	UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND	23
XI.	ELABORATION AND CLARIFICATION	24
XII.	MANDATORY RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS AND SUBMITTAL FORMAT	24
XIII.	EVALUATION CRITERIA	26
XIV.	TENTATIVE SCHEDULE OF EVENTS	26
XV.	AWARD CRITERIA	26
XVI.	APPENDICES	27
APPE	NDIX I- REFERENCES	28
APPE	NDIX II- NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT	30
APPE	NDIX III- CONFLICT OF INTEREST	31
APPE	NDIX IV- CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY	34

I. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

1. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS:

- A. Proposals shall be publicly opened at 11:00 AM on, MARCH 8, 2024. Bid openings shall be conducted in Procurement Services, which is located at 386 East Black Street, Rock Hill, SC 29730. Sealed Proposals shall be mailed to the Procurement Services Attention: RFP# 23-2416 (RHSD-2024-003) located at 386 East Black Street Rock Hill, SC 29730.
- B. Proposals shall be submitted **NO LATER THAN 11:00 AM** in the place and manner as described in paragraph 1A above. Proposals received after 11:00 AM shall be late Proposals. Late Proposals shall not be considered for award and will be returned to the vendor unopened.
- C. Proposal responses delivered via common carrier should be shipped in sufficient time prior to the due date to allow adequate transit time and to avoid any unforeseen delivery delays.
- D. One additional hardcopy of the proposal must be submitted as follows: Service Associates, Inc. ATTN: Oliver Frail RFP# 23-2416 (RHSD-2024-003), 225 Cook Street, Rural Hall, NC 27045.
- E. The District shall not accept responsibility for unidentified Proposals.
- F. In the event that a bid is unintentionally opened prior to the official time set for a bid opening, the employee opening such bid shall immediately sign the envelope and deliver it to the Purchasing Director.
- G. All prices shall be entered in ink or typewritten and shall remain firm for not less than 60 calendar days from the bid date. Mistakes may be crossed out, corrections may be inserted adjacent, and shall be initialed in ink by the person signing the bid.
- H. The District shall not accept oral, emailed, or FAXED Proposals.
- I. The Term "Offer" Means Your "Bid" or "Proposal" or "Quotation" The Term "Offeror" Means "Vendor" or "Contractor" or "Bidder"
- 2. TAXES: South Carolina Sales Tax shall be shown as a separate entry on the bid total, if applicable at 7%.
- **3.** <u>AMBIGUOUS PROPOSALS</u>: Proposals, which are uncertain as to terms, delivery, quantity, or compliance to requirements/specifications, may be rejected or otherwise disregarded.
- 4. <u>BIDDERS QUALIFICATIONS</u>: Proposals shall be considered only from bidders who are regularly established in the business called for, and who in the judgment of the District, are financially responsible and able to show evidence of their reliability, ability (to render prompt and satisfactory service in the volume required by this solicitation), experience, equipment, facilities, and personnel directly employed or supervised. Each party shall bear and be responsible solely for its own costs and expenses necessary to comply with this Agreement.

5. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM(S):

- A. Bidders shall acknowledge receipt of all addendum(s) either by signing and returning one copy of the addendum or by acknowledging the change on the bid form.
- B. It is the bidder's responsibility to determine whether they have received any or all addendum(s).
- 6. <u>AFFIRMATIVE ACTION</u>: The successful bidder shall take affirmative action in complying with all Federal, State, and local requirements concerning fair treatment of all employees/applicants, without regard or discrimination. No person shall be exclude from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination in relation to any activities conducted under this Contract the basis of race, religion, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, sex,

pregnancy, childbirth, or any related medical conditions, color, physical or mental disability, age (40 or older), ancestry, genetic information, national origin, or any other applicable status protected by Title VI, Title VII, Title IX or any other local, state, or federal law.

7. COMMUNICATION WITH PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS:

- A. Questions regarding this RFP MUST be in writing VIA EMAIL to RFP# 23-2416 (RHSD-2024-003), 2024Rockhill@district.us.com. All other communication concerning this solicitation must be in writing to the Director of Procurement Services. Email is the preferred method of communication.
- B. Oral explanation or instructions provided prior to the award of a contract shall not be binding.
- C. From the issue date of this Proposal until the completion of the selection process and the award notification is announced, bidders are not allowed to communicate with District employees and/or contracted agents related to this solicitation for any reason except as authorized by the Director of Procurement Services. Violation of this provision may result in rejection of the vendor's response.
- D. Questions will be answered by issue of Addenda sent out to the entire list of potential offerors that have registered by email at 2024Rockhill@district.us.com. Addenda will also be posted to the Form 470 within the EPC Portal. It is the vendor's responsibility to check the District's website procurement page for any addenda, responses to vendor questions, or other communications, which may be necessary during the solicitation process.
- 8. <u>WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS</u>: Any bidder may withdraw his bid prior to the closing time scheduled for the receipt of Proposals. All requests to withdraw Proposals must be submitted in writing and must document the fact that the acceptance of the bid will cause the bidder substantial loss.
- **9. ASSIGNMENT:** No contract may be assigned, sublet, or transferred without the written consent of the Director of Procurement.
- 10. <u>SUBMISSION OF DATA</u>: Each bidder, upon request, shall submit evidence of liability insurance, Workmen's Compensation, and any other data released to this solicitation, to satisfy the requirements of the solicitation and the execution of a contract.
- 11. <u>FAILURE TO SUBMIT A BID</u>: Vendors not responding with a bid should not return this solicitation. Instead, they should advise the District by letter or postcard whether they want to receive future consideration for similar requirements. Any vendor failing to respond to three consecutive Proposals for the same items may be removed from the applicable bid lists.
- 12. <u>EXCEPTIONS</u>: Notwithstanding any prior negotiations, the specifications and terms and conditions provided herein take precedence. Formal objection is hereby made to any or different terms proposed by Proposers unless listed on a separate sheet labeled "Exceptions", and agreed to in writing by the District. Proposals, which are uncertain as to terms, delivery, quantity, or compliance to requirements/specifications, may be rejected or otherwise disregarded
- 13. <u>DISTRICT CLOSINGS:</u> If an emergency or unanticipated event interrupts normal District processes so that offers cannot be received at the Procurement Office designated for receipt of bids by the exact time specified in the solicitation, the time specified for receipt of offers will be deemed to be extended to the same time of day specified in the solicitation on the first work day on which the District processes resume. In lieu of an automatic extension, an Amendment may be issued to reschedule bid opening. If District offices are closed at the time a pre-bid or pre-proposal conference is scheduled, an Amendment will be issued to reschedule the conference.
- 14. <u>RIGHT TO PROTEST (Section 4210)</u>: Any actual or prospective bidder who is aggrieved in connection with the solicitation or award may submit a protest to the Director of Procurement Services. The protest shall be submitted in

writing within fifteen (15) calendar days of the date of issuance of the Invitation for Proposals or Request for Proposal or other solicitation document, whichever is applicable, or any amendment to it, if the amendment is at issue. Any actual bidder or prospective bidder who is aggrieved in connection with the intended award or award of a contract shall protest to the Director of Procurement Services. The protest shall be submitted within ten (10) of the date award or notification of intent to award, whichever is earlier.

- 15. <u>SPECIFICATIONS:</u> Any deviation from the specifications must be clearly pointed out on the bid or attached as a separate sheet. Otherwise, the bidder will be held responsible for providing materials that are in strict compliance with the specifications. Deviations must be explained in detail. All materials shall be subject to inspection and approval after delivery. The District reserves the right to reject and return, at the risk and expense of the vendor, any portion of a shipment that is defective or fails to comply with specifications. The rejection of certain items will not invalidate the remaining order.
- 16. <u>SERVICE DATA MANUALS:</u> The Contractor agrees to furnish two (2) copies of a manual, handbook, or brochure containing operation and maintenance instructions (to include pictures, illustrations, schematics and complete repair/test guides as necessary).

Where applicable, it shall include electrical data and connection diagrams for all utilities. The instructions shall also contain a complete list of all replaceable parts showing part numbers, nomenclature and quantity required.

- 17. <u>BIDDER'S RESPONSIBILITY</u>: Each bidder shall fully acquaint himself with the scope of work required for the execution of the work specified by this bid. This will sometimes require on-site observations. The failure of a bidder to acquaint himself with existing conditions shall in no way relieve the bidder of any obligations with respect to this bid or any resulting contract.
- **18.** <u>POSTING OF AWARD:</u> Notice of Award or Intent to Award will be posted to the Procurement Services Department website and Vendor Registry.
- 19. PROPRIETARY INFORMATION: Unless otherwise required by law, and until the public opening of the proposals, all information, materials and other documents submitted by a respondent shall not be released or made available to any person or entity except District representatives assisting in this procurement process. Unless required by law, proprietary or financial information submitted to the District by a respondent will not be disclosed if the respondent visibly marks each part of the proposal that the respondent considers confidential, financial or proprietary information with the word "CONFIDENTIAL."

20. PREFERENCES:

- a) SC/US End Product; Section 11-35-1524 provides a preference to vendors offering SC- end products or USend products if those are made, manufactured, or grown in SC or the US, respectively. An end-product is the tangible product identified for acquisition in this solicitation, including all component parts in final form and ready for the use intended. The terms "made", "manufactured" and "grown" are defined by Section 11-35-1524(A). By signing your offer, you are certifying that the end- product (s) is/are either made, manufactured or grown in South Carolina or other states of the United States, as applicable. Preference will be applied as required by law. Post award substitutions are prohibited. SC End Product preference does not apply if Federal Funding is involved. US End Product is available upon request IF Federal Funding is involved.
- b) <u>Domestic Preference Under A Federal Award</u>: As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the District will provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials

produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). For purposes of this section:

- "Produced in the United States" means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.
- "Manufactured products" means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber.
- c) Preferences Resident Contractor Preference: To qualify, you must maintain an office in this state. An office is a nonmobile place for the regular transaction of business or performance of a service which has been operated as such by the responder for at least one year before the bid opening and during that year the place has been staffed for at least fifty weeks by at least two employees for at least thirty-five hours /week each. In addition, at the time you submit your bid, you must directly employ, or have a documented commitment with, individuals domiciled in South Carolina that will perform services expressly required by the solicitation and your total direct labor cost for those individuals to provide those services must exceed fifty percent of your total bid price. [11-35-1524(C) (1)(iii)] Upon request by the procurement officer, you must identify the persons domiciled in South Carolina that will perform the services involved in the procurement upon which you rely in qualifying for the preference, the services those individuals are to perform, and documentation of your labor cost for each person identified. If requested, your failure to provide this information promptly will be grounds to deny the preference (and, potentially, for other enforcement action). This preference does not apply if Federal Funding is involved.
- d) Preferences Resident Vendor Preference: To qualify, you must maintain an office in this state. An office is a nonmobile place for the regular transaction of business or performance of a particular service which has been operated as such by the bidder for at least one year before the bid opening and during that year the place has been staffed for at least fifty weeks by at least two employees for at least thirty-five hours a week each. In addition, you must either: (1) maintain at a location in South Carolina at the time of the bid an inventory of expendable items which are representative of the general type of commodities for which the award will be made and which have a minimum total value, based on the bid price, equal to the lesser of fifty thousand dollars [\$50,000] or the annual amount of the contract; or (2) be a manufacturer headquartered and having an annual payroll of at least one million dollars in South Carolina and the end product being sold is either made or processed from raw materials into a finished end product by that manufacturer or its affiliate (as defined in Section 1563 of the Internal Revenue Code). This preference does not apply if Federal Funding is involved.
- 19. <u>AWARDING POLICY:</u> The District reserves the right to select and award on an individual item basis, lot (group) basis or an "all or none" basis, whichever the District determines to be most advantageous. The award basis is stated in the award criteria.

Therefore, individual prices per item must be indicated on the Proposal form. Bidders are encouraged to offer discounts for consideration of consolidated award. Furthermore, the District, in determining the lowest responsible Bidder on each of the items shall consider, in addition to the Proposal price, conformity to specifications, delivery, the District's opinion relative to the quality of materials/services being offered, training, suitability and adaptability of the services required by this solicitation. The District reserves the right to reject or accept any or all proposals and to waive any informalities and/or irregularities thereof. In the event that identical proposals are received on like items, the Director of Procurement Services shall award proposals in accordance with the District's Procurement Code.

This solicitation document, any addendum(s), and record of negotiation will become a part of the contract when awarded.

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 1. ACCIDENTS: The vendor shall hold the District harmless from any and all damages and claims that may arise by reasons of any negligence on the part of the vendor, his agents, or employees in the performance of this contract; and, in case of any action brought against the District or any of its agents or employees, the vendor shall assume full responsibility for their defense. Upon his failure to do so on the proper notice, the District reserves the right to defend such motion and charge all costs to the vendor. The vendor shall take all precautions necessary to protect the public against injury
- 2. <u>TERMINATION</u>: Subject to the provisions contained below, this Contract may be terminated by either party with thirty (30) days notice, unless otherwise written. Contractor shall be compensated for any work completed at the time of termination.
 - a. <u>District's Termination for Convenience</u>: The Procurement Officer may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the convenience of the District. The Procurement Officer shall give written notice of the termination to the contractor specifying the part of the contract terminated and when termination becomes effective.
 - b. <u>Contractor's Termination for Convenience</u>: Contractor's failure to include an appropriate termination for convenience clause in any subcontract shall not:
 - affect the District's right to require the termination of a subcontract
 - increase the obligation of the District beyond what it would have been if the subcontract had contained an appropriate clause.
 - c. <u>Contractor's Obligations</u>: The contractor shall incur no further obligations in connection with the terminated work and on the date set in the notice of termination the contractor will stop work to the extent specified. The contractor shall also terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts as they relate to the terminated work. The contractor shall settle the liabilities and claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts and orders connected with the terminated work. The Procurement Officer may direct the contractor to assign the contractor's right, title, and interest under terminated orders or subcontracts to the District. The contractor must still complete the work not terminated by the notice of termination and may incur obligations as are necessary to do so.
 - d. <u>Right to Supplies:</u> The Procurement Officer may require the contractor to transfer title and deliver to the District in the manner and to the extent directed by the Procurement Officer:
 - i. any completed supplies; and
 - ii. such partially completed supplies and materials, parts, tools, dies, jigs, fixtures, plans, drawings, information, and contract right (hereinafter called "manufacturing material") as the contractor has specifically produced or specially acquired for the performance of the terminated part of this contract. The contractor shall, upon direction of the Procurement Officer, protect and preserve property in the possession of the contractor in which the District has an interest. If the Procurement Officer does not exercise this right, the contractor shall use best efforts to sell such supplies and manufacturing materials in accordance with the standards of Uniform Commercial Code Section 2-706. Utilization of this section in no way implies that the District has breached the contract by exercise of the Termination for Convenience Clause.

e. Compensation:

i. The contractor shall submit a termination claim specifying the amounts due because of the termination for convenience together with cost or pricing data required by Section 11-35-1830 bearing on such claim. If the contractor fails to file a termination claim within one year from the effective date of termination, the Procurement Officer may pay the contractor, if at all, an amount set in accordance with paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section ("2").

- ii. The Procurement Officer and the contractor may agree to a settlement and that the settlement does not exceed the total contract price plus settlement costs reduced by payments previously made by the District, the proceeds of any sales of supplies and manufacturing materials under paragraph (d) of this section ("2"), and the contract price of the work not terminated;
- iii. Absent complete agreement under paragraph heading "2. TERMINATION", the Procurement Officer shall pay the contractor the following amounts, provided payments agreed to under paragraph (a) of this section ("2"), shall not duplicate payments under this subparagraph:
 - o contract prices for supplies or services accepted under the contract;
 - o costs incurred in performing the terminated portion of the work less amounts paid or to be paid for accepted supplies or services;
 - o any other reasonable costs that have resulted from the termination. The total sum to be paid the contractor under this subparagraph shall not exceed the total contract price plus the reasonable settlement costs of the contractor reduced by the number of payments otherwise made, the proceeds of any sales of supplies and manufacturing materials under paragraph (d) of this section ("2"), and the contract price of work not terminated.
- iv. Contractor must demonstrate any costs claimed, agreed to, or established under paragraphs (a) and (c) of this section ("2") using its standard record keeping system, provided such system is consistent with any applicable Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

f. Termination for Cause:

Termination by the District for cause, default or negligence on the part of the contractor shall be excluded from the foregoing provision(s). Termination cost, if any, shall not apply. The thirty (30) day advance notice requirement is waived and the default provision shall apply.

3. EXAMINATION OF RECORDS:

Rock Hill Schools has the right to audit the books and records of the vendors that pertain to this purchase order, both independent of, and pursuant to, the District's Procurement Code. Such books and records shall be maintained for three (3) years from the date of final payment under the purchase order.

The District may conduct, or have conducted, performance audits of the vendor. The District may conduct, or have conducted, audits of specific requirements of this bid as determined necessary by the District.

Pertaining to all audits, vendor shall make available to the District access to its computer files containing the history of purchase order performance and all other documents related to the audit. Additionally, any software used by the vendor shall be made available for auditing purposes at no cost to the District.

- 4. <u>COMPETITION</u>: There are no federal or state laws that prohibit bidders from submitting a bid lower than a price or bid given to the United States Government. Bidders may bid lower than the US Government contract price without any liability, because the District is exempt from the provisions of the Robinson-Patman Act and other related laws. Contract price is deemed "Fair and Reasonable" and in compliance with Local, State, and Federal Laws and Regulations.
- 5. <u>SOUTH CAROLINA LAW CLAUSE</u>: Upon award of a contract under this solicitation, the person, partnership, association, or corporation to whom the award is made must comply with the laws of South Carolina, which requires such person or entity to be authorized/licensed to do business in this state. Notwithstanding the fact that applicable statutes may exempt or exclude the successful bidder from requirements that it be authorized/licensed to do business in this state.

By submission of this signed bid, the bidder agrees to subject itself to the jurisdiction and process of the courts of the State of South Carolina, as to all matters and disputes arising or to arise under the contract and the performance thereof, including any questions as to the liability of taxes, licenses or fees levied by the state.

- 6. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND ASSURANCES: By submitting a Proposal and signing the Proposal schedule, vendors are providing written assurance of non-collusion and understanding and acceptance of all general and special conditions stated in this contract. In addition, this signature certifies that the firm or agency represented in the Proposal submitted complies with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations.
- 7. MATERIALS REQUIRED: Materials required must be in conformity with the specifications and shall be subject to inspection and approval after delivery, and shall comply in quality and type of material and method of manufacture with all applicable local or state laws pertaining thereto. The right is reserved to reject and return at the risk and expense of the vendor such portions of any shipment that may be defective or fail to comply with specifications and without validating the remainder of the order.
- 8. "OR APPROVED EQUAL" CLAUSES: Certain processes, types of equipment or kinds of materials are described in the specifications and on the drawings by means of trade names and catalog numbers. In each instance where this occurs, it is understood and inferred that such description is followed by the words "or approved equal". Such method of description is intended merely as a means of establishing a standard of comparison. However, the District reserves the right to select the items which, in the judgment of the District, are best suited to the needs of the District, based on price, quality, service, availability and other relative factors. Vendors must indicate brand name, model, model number, size, type, weight, color, etc. of the item Proposal if not exactly the same as the item specified.

Vendor's stock number or catalog number is not sufficient to meet this requirement. If any Vendor desires to furnish an item different from what is specifically mentioned in the specifications, he/she shall submit with his Proposal the information, data, pictures, cuts, designs, etc., of the material he/she plans to furnish so as to enable the District to compare the material specified; and, such material will be given due consideration. The District reserves the right to insist upon and receive the items as specified, if submitted items do not meet the District's standards for acceptance.

- 9. <u>PATENTS:</u> The vendor shall hold the District, its officers, agents, and employees harmless from liability of any nature or kind whatsoever, on account of use by the publisher or author, manufacturer or agent, of any copyrighted or non-copyrighted composition, secret process, article or appliance furnished or used under this Proposal.
- 10. <u>PROPER INVOICE:</u> Invoices submitted for payment for goods or services provided under this contract shall contain, as a minimum, the following information:
 - Name of business concern
 - Contract number or other authorization for delivery of service or property
 - Complete description
 - Price and quantity of property or service actually delivered or executed
 - Payment terms
 - Name where applicable
 - Title, telephone number and complete mailing address of responsible official to whom payment is to be sent;
 and other substantiating documentation of information as required by the contract
 - All invoices shall be submitted via email to <u>APINVOICES@rhmail.org</u> with the Company name and purchase order# referenced in the subject line
 - Rock Hill School District will not process the final payment until all goods and/or services are received/rendered
 to the district.

- 11. <u>TIME OF COMPLETION:</u> Date of delivery shall be a consideration factor in the awarding process. The vendor shall include with his/her Proposal delivery dates for each item as requested and shall furnish all items in accordance with the Proposal solicitation unless an extension was granted by the District in writing.
- 12. <u>DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE</u>: This contract is subject to the Drug Free Workplace Act if the stated or estimated value is Fifty Thousand Dollars or more. The contractor shall comply with all terms and conditions of the Drug Free Workplace Act, S. C. CODE ANN. 44-107-10 et seq. (1976 as amended), if this contract is for a stated or estimated value of Fifty Thousand Dollars or more. By signing this Proposal, you are certifying that you will comply with the Drug Free Workplace Act.
- 13. <u>NON-APPROPRIATIONS</u>: Any contract entered into by ROCK HILL SCHOOLS resulting from this Request shall be subject to cancellation without damages or further obligation when funds are not appropriated or otherwise made available to support continuation of performance in a subsequent fiscal period or appropriated period.
- 14. PRICE ADJUSTMENT BASED ON CONTRACTOR'S COST: Any request for price increase must be submitted to the District at least ninety (90) days prior to the renewal date unless otherwise stated. (Price increases will only become effective if approved in writing by the Purchasing Director). The maximum increase will not exceed the unadjusted percent change from the previous year shown in the Consumer Price Index (CPI), All Urban Consumers (CPI-U), "Other Goods and Services" or the current market conditions. A justification of the increase shall be submitted in addition to the index.
- 15. <u>SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT:</u> By submitting a proposal (IFB/RFP/RFQ), the applicant certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief that the applicant and/or any of its principals, sub grantees, or subcontractors are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any state or federal agency; have not, within a three-year period preceding this application, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) contract or subcontract; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity with, commission of any of the offenses enumerated above. Applicant has not, within a three-year period preceding this application, had one or more contracts terminated for default by any public (federal, state, or local) entity.
- 16. <u>INDEMNITY</u>: Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold Rock Hill Schools, its officers, employees and agents free and harmless from and against any and all losses, penalties, damages, settlements, costs, charges, professional fees or other expenses or liabilities of every kind and character arising out of or relating to any and all claims, liens, demands, obligations, actions, proceedings, or causes of action of every kind in connection with or arising out of this agreement and/or the performance hereof that are due, in whole or in part, to the negligence of the Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors or agents.
 - Contractor further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense for, and defend the same at its sole expense and agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto.
- 17. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor shall maintain, throughout the performance of its obligations under this contract, a policy or policies of Worker's Compensation insurance with such limits as may be required by law, and a policy or policies of general liability insurance insuring against liability for injury to, and death of, persons and damage to, and destruction of, property arising out of or based upon any act or omission of the contractor or any of its subcontractors or their respective officers, directors, employees or agents. Such general liability insurance shall have limits sufficient to cover any loss or potential loss resulting from this contract. Contractor and/or Subcontractor acknowledges that Rock Hill School District is not responsible or liable for insurance premiums or polices for the

Contractor. In addition, Contractor and/or Subcontractor acknowledges that it solely responsible for, and shall promptly pay, all employer taxes, withholding requirement, etc., on its employees.

The successful contractor shall provide a certificate of insurance within ten (10) calendar days after notification of award of the proposal. The insurance required shall be written for not less than totals listed below:

A. WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Statutory limits covering all employees, including Employer's Liability with limits of:

\$500,000 Each Accident

\$500,000 Disease - Each Employee \$500,000 Disease - Policy Limit

B. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Covering all operations involved in this Agreement.

\$1,000,000 General Aggregate

\$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate

\$1,000,000 Each Occurrence \$ 5,000 Medical Payments

C. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

\$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit - Any Auto

- 18. <u>WORKMANSHIP</u>: All workmen shall be thoroughly experienced and/or trained and certified in the particular trade or class in which they are employed. All work shall be done according to the specifications covering the class or type of work and shall meet the approval of the School District's representative. The parties agree that during the term of this Agreement, each party shall maintain its respective federal and state licenses, certifications, and accreditations required for the provision of services herein.
- 19. <u>LIABILITY</u>- The contractor shall assume liability for damage or loss resulting from the wrongful act(s) and/or negligence of his employees. The contractor or his insurer shall reimburse the School District for any such damage or loss within 30 days.

Subcontracting

The contractor shall not subcontract, assign, sublet, or transfer any portion of this contract, or its provisions, without prior written approval from the School District; which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld provided contractor remains liable for performance of all items of this contract.

Laws

The contractor shall comply with all laws, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations bearing on the conduct of the work, including those of Federal, State, and Local agencies having jurisdiction. This shall include but not be limited to minimum wages, labor and equal employment opportunity laws.

20. SAFETY, DAMAGE OR THEFT:

Contractor shall be responsible for complying at all times of this contract with, OSHA, AHERA, SCDHEC, and EPA requirements and shall immediately report any loss of time or injuries to the Director of Operations (803) 981-1150.

21. <u>SECURITY</u>: The Contractor shall be responsible for safeguarding against loss, theft, or damage of all Rock Hill Schools' property, materials, equipment, and accessories that might be exposed to the contractor's personnel. Guns, knives, or other dangerous weapons shall not be allowed on campus. Smoking, alcohol and drugs are prohibited on the campus.

- 22. <u>UNAUTHORIZED PERSONNEL:</u> Contractor's personnel shall not allow any unauthorized persons in school buildings (children, friends, or anyone else not authorized by School District or contractor).
- 23. <u>FORCE MAJEURE</u>: Neither the District nor the Contractor shall be liable for any excess costs if failure to perform the contract arises out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of either party. Such causes may include, but not restricted to acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of government in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, fires, floods epidemics, quarantine, restrictions, strikes, freight embargos, and unusually severe weather conditions; but in every case, the failure to perform is caused beyond the control of both the District and the Contractor, and without the fault or negligence of either of them.
- **24.** <u>CONTRACT PROVISION TO REQUIRE CERTIFICATION AND COMPLIANCE CONCERNING ILLEGAL ALIENS:</u> By submission of this bid, the bidder as the prime contractor does hereby agree:
 - A. To certify its compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14 of Title 8 of the S.C. Code of Laws regarding Unauthorized Aliens and Public Equipment;
 - B. To provide Rock Hill Schools with any documents required to establish such compliance upon request; and
 - C. To register and participate and require agreement from subcontractors and sub-subcontractors to register and participate in the federal work authorization program to verify the employment authorization of all new employees, or to employ only workers who supply the documents required pursuant to S.C. Code 8-14-20(B)(2).
- 25. <u>CONTRACT DOCUMENT:</u> This solicitation document, any addendum(s), and record of negotiation(s) will become a part of the contract when awarded. Any changes to this Contract, which are mutually agreed upon between Contractor and/or Subcontractor and the District, shall be incorporated in written amendment to this Contract and will not become effective until the amendment is signed by each party. Appropriate staff of the District and Contractor and/or Subcontractor can meet on an as needed basis to evaluate this Contract based on the responsibilities for each party.
- 26. <u>STUDENT AND STAFF SAFETY:</u> The successful bidder shall be required to verify that criminal conviction inquiries/checks and pertinent criminal background inquires/checks have been conducted on all of its employees and the subcontractors who may interact with staff and/or students during the performance of the awarded scope of work or who may have a need to enter District property related to the performance of the contract or who may have access to personal student or District personnel information.

All inquiries and background checks must be conducted annually or more frequently or as required by the District if the bidder has the potential to be in the presence of students. Student, parent, and participant information shall be kept confidential and shall not be disclosed for any purpose.

Persons who are identified as a Sex Offender or violators as defined by the South Carolina Code of Laws (Ann. 2006), Article 7, Sections 23-3-400 to 23-3-500 or statute or any other states statues and person who have been convicted of Violent Crimes as defined by the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 16-160; are prohibited from entering any of the Rock Hill Schools facilities at any time, including all District grounds and all District facilities. Persons employed by or under the direction of the bidder or any subcontractor who are under investigation or have been charged with crimes and/or convicted of crimes against children or crimes of a sexual or violent nature shall not be allowed on District property.

The District may in its sole discretion terminate any existing contract for the failure by the awarded bidder, its subcontractors or any representative of the bidder or subcontract to observe this requirement or for any violation of this solicitation's requirements. No penalty or other costs shall be levied against the District as a result of its decision to terminate the contract or award.

In addition to the above obligations of successful bidder/awarded firm, all persons and contractor personnel having contact with students and/or any individual who enters onto District property may be subject to a national criminal background check at the discretion of the District prior to entry upon District property and the performance of any duties. All individuals entering District property shall be screened nationally for criminal sex offenses/sex offender status on automated equipment at school or site.

- 27. ROCK HILL SCHOOLS COVID-19 GUIDELINES: Due to Rock Hill Schools COVID-19 guidelines, facilities access is limited to designated access points. Contractors are encouraged to follow recommended preventive measures according to guidelines available by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) and/or South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control (SC DHEC). In particular, Contractors are responsible for ensuring onsite personnel have gloves and masks available, screening all onsite personnel daily using the District's COVID-19 Screening Form which includes symptomatic screening questions and a temperature check. If any of the listed symptoms are present or if the worker's temperature is greater than 100.4, the worker will not be allowed on site. Contractors agree to notify the District if any onsite personnel report symptoms.
- 28. <u>SEVERABILITY:</u> Should a court of competent jurisdiction rule any portion of this agreement invalid, null, or void, that fact shall not affect or invalidate any other portion or section of the agreement and all remaining portions and sections of the agreement remain in full force and effect.
- 29. <u>CONFIDENTIALITY:</u> As outlined in the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), student data is confidential and shall not be shared in any form with anyone other than the student, the student's parent(s) or legal guardian(s), except as directed by site administrator or appropriate district staff.

Rock Hill School District expects Contractor to respect the confidentiality of information obtained during their professional work. Information is revealed only with the informed consent of the client, except in those situations in which failure to release information would result in clear danger to the client or others. In addition to the ethical standards of confidentiality, laws exist to protect the privacy of individuals. Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) is a federal law that protects the students' records in all schools that receive federal funding. Consent is needed to allow release of records to others, except in special circumstances (e.g., health, safety, legal request etc.).

III. ADDITIONAL CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

Expenditures or contracts involving Federal funds are subject to Federal Rules and Regulations. The below provisions apply to Non-Federal Entity Contracts under Federal Awards (if applicable to the contract):

- **A.** <u>EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE</u>: During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:
 - i. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
 - ii. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

- iii. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- iv. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."; and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- v. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by the Executive Order(s) listed in section "V, item A. iv." of this document, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- vi. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the discrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further government contracts or Federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized the Executive Order(s) listed in section "V, item A. iv." of this document, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in the Executive Order(s) listed in section "V, item A. iv." of this document, or by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- vii. The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 504 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in Federally assisted construction work; provided, that if the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality, or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract. The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance. The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to the Executive Order(s) listed in section "V, item A. iv." of this document, with a contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, government contracts and Federally assisted construction contracts, pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future

RFP# 23-2416 (RHSD-2024-003) Wireless School Bus Services compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

B. <u>DAVIS-BACON ACT:</u> Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act:

- i. All transactions regarding this contract shall be done in compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141- 3144, and 3146-3148) and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as may be applicable. The contractor shall comply with 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as applicable.
- ii. Contractors are required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor.
- iii. Additionally, contractors are required to pay wages not less than once a week.
- iv. Contractors must also comply with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled.

C. <u>CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT:</u> Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701–3708):

- i. Overtime Requirements (40 U.S.C. 3702): No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- ii. Health and Safety Standards (40 U.S.C. 3704): Standards are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.
- iii. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages, Liquidated Damages: In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States, for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause of this section, in the sum of \$27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause in this section.
- iv. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages: The Federal agency or the loan or grant recipient shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause.
- v. Subcontracts: The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses in this section.

D. CLEAN AIR ACT:

- i. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.
- ii. The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Procurement Officer and understands and agrees that the Procurement Officer will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.
- iii. The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000.

E. FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT:

- i. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.
- ii. The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Procurement Officer and understands and agrees that the Procurement Officer will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.
- iii. The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000.
- F. <u>BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT:</u> Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) to the awarding agency.
- **G.** <u>REMEDIES:</u> Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.
- H. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS: For contracts using Federal Funding, Contractor and subcontractor must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded \$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.
- I. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT: Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

J. PROHIBITION OF CERTAIN COMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT:

Recipients and sub recipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

- 1) Procure or obtain;
- 2) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or
- 3) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).
 - For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).
 - ii. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.
 - iii. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.

In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers is sustained.

IV. GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Actual Cost: All direct and indirect costs incurred for services, supplies, or construction, as distinguished from estimated or forecasted costs.

Amendment: An agreed addition to, deletion from, correction or modification of a document or contract. To revise or change an existing document; a formal revision, improvement or correction.

Assignment: Legal transfer of a claim, right, interest or property.

Capability: The ability of a bidder to fulfill the contract at time of award.

Consultant: To work or serve in an advisory capacity. A person or company that possesses unique qualifications which allow them to perform specialized advisory services usually for a fee.

Consultant Services: Services of an advisory nature to support policy development, decision-making, administration, or management of a business or public entity; generally provided by individuals or organizations who possess specific knowledge, technical skills or unique abilities not usually available in house or from within the entity.

Contractor: Any individual or business having a contract with a governmental body to furnish goods, services, or construction for an agreed-upon price.

Cost: The actual expenses incurred in delivering a product, service, or construction; includes both direct and indirect costs, but does not include fee or profit for the contractor.

Descriptive Literature: Information, such as charts, illustrations, brochures, and technical data, furnished by a bidder, on request as part of a bid, to describe the items offered; shows the characteristics or construction of a product, or explains its operation to determine the acceptability of the item.

Firm: A for-profit business, usually formed as a partnership that provides professional services, such as legal or accounting services. The theory of the firm posits that firms exist to maximize profits.

Late Bid/Proposal: A bid, proposal, withdrawal, or modification received, at the designated place for receipt, after the established due date and time. Procurement policies should be established in order to provide guidance regarding how late bids/proposals are handled administratively. In most public entities, late bids/proposals are not opened and may be returned to the bidder/proposer advising that the bid was received late (after the due date and time) and cannot be accepted.

Mandatory: Obligatory, required by order, a provision that may not be waived.

Mandatory Requirements (Conditions): Conditions set out in the specifications/statement of work that must be met without alteration. Not meeting mandatory requirements may be grounds for disqualification.

Offeror: The person/entity who submits a proposal in response to a Request for Proposals (RFP). One who makes an offer in response to a solicitation. Term *Bidder* is interchangeably throughout this RFP. *Also see definition of a Responsible and Responsive Offeror/Bidder*.

Pre-Bid/ Pre-Proposal Conference (Meeting): A meeting held by the buyer with potential bidders/offerors, prior to the opening of the solicitation for the purpose of answering questions, clarifying any ambiguities and responding to general issues in order to establish a common basis for understanding all of the requirements of the solicitation. This may result in the issuance of an addendum to all potential providers. In certain situations, a mandatory conference may be advisable

Price: The total amount, in money or other consideration, to be paid or charged for a commodity or service; normally includes all costs (direct labor, overhead, materials) and profit or fee.

Request for Proposals (RFP): The document used to solicit proposals from potential providers for goods and services (Offerors). Price is usually not a primary evaluation factor. Provides for the negotiation of all terms, including price prior to contract award. May include a provision for the negotiation of Best and Final Offers. May be a single step or multistep process. Introduced in the Armed Services Procurement Act of 1962 as well as by the Competition in Contracting Act of 1984.

Responsible Bidder/Offeror: Also referred to as Responsible Proposer or Respondent. A contractor, business entity or individual who is fully capable to meet all of the requirements of the solicitation and subsequent contract. Must possess the full capability, including financial and technical, to perform as contractually required. Must be able to fully document the ability to provide good faith performance.

Responsive Bidder/Offeror: Also referred to as Responsive Proposer or Respondent. A contractor, business entity or individual who has submitted a bid or proposal that fully conforms in all material respects to the IFB/RFP and all of its requirements, including all form and substance.

Service/Services Contract: An agreement calling for a firm's time and effort. The furnishing of labor, time, or effort by a firm, which may involve to a lesser degree, the delivery or supply of products.

Short List: Names of candidates that have been narrowed considerably from a longer list of top-ranked Offerors.

Solicitation: An invitation for bids, a request for proposals, telephone calls or any document used to obtain bids or proposals for the purpose of entering into a contract.

Scope of Work/Services: A detailed, written description of the conceptual requirements for the project contained within a Request for Proposal. The scope of work should establish a clear understanding of what is required by the entity.

(Definitions above provided by the National Institute of Governmental Purchasing and Free Dictionary.com)

VIII. SCOPE OF SERVICES

THE DISTRICT

Rock Hill School District is a SC Public School District with twenty-eight (28) instructional locations and a total enrollment of approximately +/- 16,000 students. The District also has an ancillary location, which includes the Rock Hill School District Administrative Offices.

The District's Network Systems utilize Microsoft operating systems for both servers and user devices. Network Electronics include but are not limited to Cisco/Meraki wireless access points, Cisco/Meraki Network Gear, Brocade, and Palo Alto. The District maintains and adheres to the network design it has developed over time. The District will take this IT Standard into account as illustrated in the evaluation criteria on Page 26 of the RFP.

The District encourages interested service providers to offer proposals for any, each, or all of the categories of services listed above. The District will negotiate and award contracts as it deems necessary. It is the intent of the District to award two-year contract(s) featuring an option for voluntary extensions. The initial term may be voluntarily extended / renewed. Renewals will be in one-year increments and will be instated via a simple one-page voluntary amendment to extend the Contract Expiration Date one year and to be executed by the District and the Offeror. The extensions may be less than, but may not exceed three (3) additional one-year periods. If the contractor elects not to extend on the anniversary date, the contractor must notify the District of its intention in writing 90 days prior to the anniversary date. Any further extensions must be in accordance with the District Procurement Code.

SCOPE SPECIFICATIONS:

This document is a Request for Proposal (RFP); it is not an Invitation to Bid (ITB). In determining the meaning of statements contained in this document, please carefully consider the strict meaning of words such as: must, shall, will, should, might, could, require, suggest, etc. The District encourages Service Providers to propose solutions as they see fit and that best provide a solution to the District's needs. In all instances where specifications reference a specific manufacturer, make, and/or model, offeror should assume the district will consider EQUIVALENT items.

Rock Hill School District is seeking sealed proposals to implement Wireless Services (Wi-Fi) on the District's 111 school buses. Proposals for the school bus wireless project should include the wireless devices, any associated equipment, mounting hardware, labor required to install all equipment, and the recurring wireless broadband services. This request also includes support licenses corresponding with the network equipment, if applicable. The District requests that vendors provide pricing for a <u>turn-key solution</u> in connection with the wireless project; to include acquisition, installation, configuration, testing, and the recurring wireless broadband services.

Service providers must familiarize themselves with the geographical locations serviced by the District and subsequently certify their ability to provide mobile broadband connectivity within the area without any known service area limitations within their network.

No lump sum bids will be accepted. All costs must be itemized; materials and labor (where applicable) must be quoted separately. Labor should be quoted by quantity / number of buses. The District is currently looking to outfit 111 buses, however, pricing must remain fixed to accommodate additional buses for the lifetime of the contract. If any item quoted by a vendor is not 100% eligible for E-Rate Support, it is the responsibility of the vendor to provide a cost allocation.

V. INTRODUCTION

This solicitation is a Request for Proposal (RFP). Rock Hill Schools will conduct a formal selection process to determine the best qualified offeror's that meet the District's requirements as indicated herein. A selection committee will review and evaluate the submittals. The submittals will be assessed in accordance with the following evaluation criteria:

- Cost 50%
- Qualification and Experience 30%
- Past Performance 10%
- Project Approach and Understanding Plan 10%

Top scoring respondents may be short-listed and invited to an interview.

Rock Hill Schools is an equal opportunity employer and encourages Local Business and Small Women-Owned, Minority Business Enterprise (SMWBE) in accordance with Division of Small and Minority Business Contracting and Certification (SMBCC) and/or similar state or federal certification programs participation to the extent legally feasible.

VI. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

- a) The goal of this initiative is to enhance the educational experience for our students by providing them with internet connectivity during their commute, enabling access to educational resources and allowing them to complete homework assignments or engage in educational activities while on the bus.
- b) The objective of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to contract with a vendor(s) to implement Wireless Services (Wi-Fi) on the District's 111 school buses.
- c) An objective is to implement Wi-Fi services on the District's school buses in the most cost effective and efficient manner. This project includes the wireless devices, any associated equipment, mounting hardware, labor required to install all equipment, and the recurring wireless broadband services. The vendor will need to itemize all costs to distinguish line items that are 100% eligible for E-Rate reimbursement from line items that are not 100% eligible for E-Rate reimbursement and provide a cost allocation for any ineligible costs.
- d) An objective is to obtain fixed pricing to accommodate the outfitting of additional buses, as needed, for the lifetime of the contract. Any RFP response that does not outline pricing on a "Firm/Fixed price" basis, may be eliminated from further consideration.

VII. BACKGROUND

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 established a fund by which Schools and Libraries across the Country could access discounts on eligible telecommunications products and services. The program is commonly known as the Erate Program. The eligibility for discounts on internet access, telecommunications products and services, internal connection products, services and maintenance is determined by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). Funding is made available upon application approval by the Schools and Libraries Division (SLD) of the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC), which was established by the Act.

The project herein is contingent upon the approval of funding from the Universal Service Fund's Schools and Libraries Program, otherwise known as E-rate. Even after award of contracts(s) and/or E-rate funding approval is obtained, the District may or may not proceed with the project, in whole or in part. Execution of the project, in whole or in part, is solely at the discretion of the District.

WIRELESS SCHOOL BUS SERVICES SPECIFICATIONS:

The selected vendor will be responsible for:

- Providing Wi-Fi equipment for 111 school buses within Rock Hill School District to include the wireless devices, mounting hardware, and any associated equipment required to make use of the service.
- Labor for a turn-key solution to include physical installation, mounting, configuration and testing. Hardware to be installed and labeled according to Rock Hill School District's naming convention.
- Provide recurring broadband services that ensure seamless connectivity and reliable internet access for students and staff.
- Implementing content filtering, network restrictions, and any appropriate security measures to safeguard the network and protect users' privacy. Must be CIPA compliant.
- Offering ongoing technical support and maintenance services to address any issues that may arise.
- Providing a solution that can be configured to integrate with the District's existing network solution.

IX. SERVICE PROVIDER REQUIREMENTS

The District expects the Service Providers to make themselves thoroughly familiar with any rules or regulations regarding the E-rate program. Service Providers are required to be in full compliance with all current requirements and future requirements issued by the SLD throughout the contractual period of any contract entered into as a result of this RFP.

- Service Providers are responsible for providing a valid SPIN (Service Provider Identification Number).
- Service Providers are responsible for providing evidence of FCC Green Light Status at the time the bid is submitted.
 Any potential bidder found to be in Red Light Status will be disqualified from participation in the bidding process and will be considered non-responsive.
- 3. Products and services must be delivered before billing can commence.
- 4. Prices must be held firm for the duration of the associated E-rate Funding Year(s) or until all work associated with the project is complete (including any contract and USAC approved extensions).
- Goods and services provided shall be clearly designated as "E-rate Eligible". Ineligible goods and services shall be clearly called out as 100% ineligible or shall be "cost allocated" to show the percentage of eligible costs per SLD guidelines.
- 6. In the event of questions during an E-rate pre-commitment review, post-commitment review and/or audit inquiry, the awarded Service Provider is expected to reply within five (5) days to questions associated with its proposal.
- 7. The awarded Service Provider is required to send copies of all forms and invoices to the District prior to invoicing USAC for pre-approval. Failure to comply with this requirement may result in the District placing the vendor on an "Invoice Check" with the USAC.
- 8. Service provider shall retain all documentation related to the purchase, payment, delivery and/or installation, including Forms 474 and receipt of payment from USAC, for all products and services provided to the applicant. Related documentation must be retained for a period of 10 years from the last date of service.

X. UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND

The Contractor must have a Form 498 ID Number and must be a vendor in good standing with USAC-SLD (the E-Rate Program). The District will post an FCC Form 470 on the USAC-SLD web site in conjunction with this RFP, and it is the intent of the District to file a FCC Form 471 Application(s) with the SLD for funding of these services. The successful Contractor

must possess a Service Provider Identification Number (SPIN) and will be <u>required</u> to bill in accordance with SLD guidelines using the method determined by the District – Service Provider Invoice (SPI) or Billed Entity Applicant Reimbursement (BEAR).

By submitting to this request for proposal the Contractor warrants that it is qualified under applicable Federal Communications Commission and South Carolina Public Service Commission rules to apply for and receive Universal Service Fund allocations/disbursements for services provided pursuant to this Agreement to schools, libraries, rural health care providers, agencies, institutions and consortia thereof, and other entities that are eligible for those allocations/disbursements on behalf, and for the benefit, of those entities, agencies and institutions. The Contractor also agrees to maintain those qualifications and to cooperate with the District in applying for and receiving these allocations/disbursements and applying these to any billing that would be received from the contractor for services.

XI. ELABORATION AND CLARIFICATION

If you do not ask questions or clarify any assumptions, the District will assume that you agree with and understand the requirements in the RFP. If, after examination of the various terms and conditions and requirements of this RFP, the Respondent believes there are any terms and conditions or requirements which remain unclear or which restrict competition, the Respondent must request, in writing, that District clarify the terms(s) and condition(s) and requirement(s) specified by the Respondent. Questions regarding this RFP MUST be in writing VIA EMAIL to RFP# 23-2416 (RHSD-2024-003), 2024Rockhill@district.us.com. The Respondent must provide the Section(s), Subsection(s), Paragraph(s), and page number(s) that identify the conditions or requirements questioned by the Respondent by 11:00AM on February 26, 2024 which is the last day for questions.

The District may ask any or all respondents to elaborate or clarify specific points or portions of their response. Clarification may take the form of written responses to questions or meetings to discuss the RFP and/or the participant's response.

No questions may be directed to or contacts made with members of the Rock Hill Schools Board, Superintendent, or any District staff not identified in this RFP as points of contacts during the period of time that this RFP is made public until the final selection is made, except as otherwise provided for herein. Violation of this prohibition will be subject to disqualification of the Bidder from further consideration.

XII. MANDATORY RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS AND SUBMITTAL FORMAT

All proposals shall be submitted to Rock Hill Schools no later than March 8, 2024 at 11:00 AM. Contractors shall deliver one (1) original UNBOUND copy, three (3) hard copies and one (1) USB drive of the information requested above. One additional hardcopy of the proposal must be submitted as follows: Service Associates, Inc. ATTN: Oliver Frail RFP# 23-2416 (RHSD-2024-003), 225 Cook Street, Rural Hall, NC 27045. Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straight forward and concise response to satisfy the requirement of this Request for Proposal. All submittals must be clearly labeled on the outside of the envelope with the following wording: "RFP# 23-2416 (RHSD-2024-003) RHSD WIRELESS SCHOOL BUS SERVICES." All late proposals will be rejected. The District is not responsible for late RFP's caused by delays in mail delivery or a delay in any other method of delivery.

All Responses shall be on 8 1/2" x 11" paper with all standard text no smaller than twelve (12) points. The total page count shall not exceed twenty- five (25). Response shall be double-sided copying and be bound with tab dividers corresponding to the format requirements specified below. Failure of the respondent to organize the information required by this RFP as outlined herein may result in the District, at its sole discretion, deeming the response non-responsive to the requirements of this RFP. The Contractor, however, may reduce the repetition of identical information within several sections of the RFP by making the appropriate cross-references to other sections of the response. Submittals shall include the following information divided by tabs:

1. Pages 1 and 2 of this Request for Proposal.

2. Company Background and Capability Statement

The following information shall be listed in this section:

- Name of primary contact, address, phone number, and email.
- State the location of the office from which the work is to be done and the number of partners, managers, supervisors, seniors, and other professional staff employed at that office.

Also include the following descriptive information:

- Business philosophy and mission statement.
- Disclosure of any involvement by the organization or any officer of principal in any material business litigation, judgments, and/or list of bankruptcy or organization proceedings within the last five (5) years. Include the current status and/or disposition.

3. Qualifications and Experience

The following are minimum requirements for the respondents. Failure to submit this information shall deem the Service Provider as non-responsive. Proposal shall include evidence of the following:

- E-rate 498 Supporting Documentation to show their current Service Provider Annual Certification (SPAC) status as active
- FCC Green Light Status

4. Past Performance

The Consultant must demonstrate their knowledge and expertise to perform the requirements of the scope of work, including network systems integration. Consultant shall have a proven track record of a minimum of five (5) years of experience and must provide five (5) references, on Appendix I, where similar services, as indicated in the Scope of Work, were performed in a K-12 environment only.

5. Proposed Scope of Work, Approach and Understanding

Describe how the company will complete the scope of work, beginning with preliminary meetings with the District through completion of the project. Include an organization chart of the key employees that will be assigned. Additionally, discuss why your company should be selected by the District.

6. Cost Proposal

The cost proposal shall be submitted separately in a sealed envelope.

7. Appendices

The Consultant shall complete the following Appendices:

- Appendix I- References
- Appendix II- Non-Collusion Affidavit
- Appendix III- Conflict of Interest
- Appendix IV- Certificate of Eligibility

XIII. EVALUATION CRITERIA

The committee, comprised of District employees and representatives, will review each submittal based upon the criteria listed below.

RFP Evaluation Criteria	Maximum Points
1. Cost	50%
2. Qualifications and Experience	30%
Evaluation will include relevant experience and required qualifications, key personnel, , and experience with similar projects.	30%
3. Past Performance	
Evaluation will include the review of past projects.	10%
4. Project Approach and Understanding	
Evaluation will include the effectiveness of the Contractors organizational project management	
structure and their facility capabilities to be used in executing and managing the project. This	10%
will include the overall approach for coordinating and managing all work activities to meet the	
implementation schedule.	

XIV. TENTATIVE SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

Proposal Issue Date	February 7, 2024
Last Day for Questions	February 26, 2024 at 11:00 AM
Proposal Due Date	March 8, 2024 at 11:00 AM

XV. AWARD CRITERIA

It is to the sole discretion of the District to determine the award method. Award will be made to the highest ranked, responsive and responsible offeror(s) whose offer is determined to be the most advantageous to the District.

Appendix I- References

Appendix II- Non-Collusion Affidavit

Appendix III- Conflict of Interest

Appendix IV- Certificate of Eligibility

APPENDIX I- REFERENCES

REFERENCE #1	
COMPANY NAME:	
CONTACT NAME:	
ADDRESS:	
PHONE:	
EMAIL ADDRESS:	
DATE OF CONTRACT:	
DESCRIBE WORK	
PERFORMED	
DESERVATION 110	
REFERENCE #2	
COMPANY NAME:	
CONTACT NAME:	
ADDRESS:	
PHONE:	
EMAIL ADDRESS:	
DATE OF CONTRACT:	
DESCRIBE WORK	
PERFORMED	
REFERENCE #3	
COMPANY NAME:	
CONTACT NAME:	
ADDRESS:	
PHONE:	
EMAIL ADDRESS:	
DATE OF CONTRACT:	
DESCRIBE WORK	
PERFORMED	

REFERENCE #4	
COMPANY NAME:	
CONTACT NAME:	
ADDRESS:	
PHONE:	
EMAIL ADDRESS:	
DATE OF CONTRACT:	
DESCRIBE WORK	
PERFORMED	
REFERENCE #5	
COMPANY NAME:	
CONTACT NAME:	
ADDRESS:	
PHONE:	
EMAIL ADDRESS:	
DATE OF CONTRACT:	
DESCRIBE WORK	
PERFORMED	

Service Provider must ensure the accuracy of the contact information.

Failure to provide accurate information may result in a lower evaluation.

APPENDIX II- NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

My commission expires _____

State of	
County of	
being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:	
(1) I AM of, t submitted the attached RFP:	he Respondent that has
(2) I AM fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached circumstances respecting such RFP:	d RFP and of all pertinent
(3) Such RFP is genuine and is not a collusive or sham RFP:	
(4) Neither the said Respondent nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, re or parties in interest, including this affidavit, has in any way colluded, conspired, co or indirectly with any other Respondent, firm or person to submit a collusive or shall contract for which the attached RFP has been submitted or to retain from bidding Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or colluctonference with any other Respondent, or to secure through any collusion, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the <u>District</u> or any person interested and	onnived or agreed, directly am in connection with the g in connection with such asion or communication or conspiracy, connivance or
(5) The price or prices quoted in the attached RFP are fair and proper and are not conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of it owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affidavit.	
Printed Name Signature	
Title Subscribed and sworn to before me	
thisday of,20	
(Notary Public)	

APPENDIX III- CONFLICT OF INTEREST

l <u>,</u>	(Offeror), on behalf of myself and my company, and my sub-Contractors, if
applicable, certify the following, und	der penalty of perjury, that to the best of my knowledge and belief:

- 1. No circumstances currently exist that create a Conflict of Interest in my performing the services required by the Solicitation to which I am responding or the Agreement to be signed if I am the successful Offeror in response to this Solicitation, and
- 2. I understand and acknowledge that my failure to disclose any affiliation or relationship that creates or may create a Conflict of Interest shall be deemed a material misrepresentation and sufficient reason for Offeror and Offeror's company to be disqualified, suspended, and/or excluded from participating in this and any future solicitation and procurements as well as removal from the Rock Hill Schools vendor database. It may further result in termination of any contractual relationship with Rock Hill Schools (District) and may be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including debarment by the District, fines, penalties, imprisonment, or civil suit to be brought against Offeror or Offeror's company.
- 3. That to my knowledge, no employee or official of the District, nor any public agency or official affected by this Solicitation or the Agreement to be signed if I am the successful Offeror, has any pecuniary interest in the business of the Offeror's company or Offeror's sub-Contractor(s), nor does Offeror or Offeror's sub-Contractor(s) have any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance related to this Solicitation or Agreement.
- 4. I warrant that I and my sub-Contractor(s), if any, have not employed or retained any company or person other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Offeror's company or sub-Contractor(s) in order to solicit or secure an agreement with Rock Hill Schools, as related to this Solicitation or any resulting Agreement, and that I and my sub-Contractor(s), if any, have not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Offeror's company or Offeror's sub-Contractor(s) any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award of any Agreement.
- 5. I warrant and represent that my offer identifies and explains below any unfair competitive advantage I or my company or sub-Contractor(s) may have in competing for the Agreement to result from this Solicitation and any actual or potential conflicts of interest that may arise from my participation in this Solicitation or my receipt of an award. I acknowledge that the District intends by this statement to identify any and all potential conflicts of interest and unfair competitive advantages held by any Offeror, to prevent the existence of conflicting roles that might bias a Contractor's judgment, and prevent one Offeror or company from having an unfair competitive advantage over other Offerors.

The District, in its sole discretion, has the authority and responsibility to determine whether or not a conflict of interest or unfair competitive advantage exists, after a review of the relevant facts. I acknowledge and understand that if I or my company has an unfair competitive advantage or a conflict of interest; the District may withhold the award of this Agreement. Before employer taxes

award on these grounds, an Offeror will be notified of the concerns and provided a reasonable opportunity to respond. Efforts to avoid or mitigate such concerns, including restrictions on future activities, may be considered.

List any Actual or Potential Conflicts of Interest below or check the box below to certify that none exists. Failure to fully disclose information may result in penalties and/or sanctions as outlined in #2 above.

Ple	ase check only one box below.
	No known actual or potential Conflicts of Interest are subject to disclosure. All identified actual or potential Conflicts of Interest and/or Unfair Competitive advantage(s) are stated below and submitted for further review by Rock Hill Schools.

- 6. I warrant that should I become aware of an actual or potential conflict of interest involving my company or sub-Contractor(s), if any, in performing the services under the Agreement or responding to this Solicitation, I will notify the District immediately. I also warrant that should I become aware of any competitive advantage that my company or sub-Contractor(s) have in responding to this Solicitation or providing services under an Agreement related to this Solicitation, I will immediately notify the District of the discovery of a possible competitive advantage. I understand and acknowledge that this obligation to inform the District of the discovery of a conflict of interest or competitive advantage is a continuing obligation and extends throughout the Term of the Agreement for this procurement.
- 7. By signing this statement, I certify for myself and on behalf of my company and any of my sub-Contractor(s) that I have and will comply with, and have not, and will not, induce a person to violate Title 8, Chapter 13 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended (Ethics Act). I acknowledge and understand that the District may rescind any Agreement and recover all amounts expended as a result of any action taken in violation of this provision. If I or my company or sub-Contractor(s) participate, directly or indirectly, in the evaluation or award of public Agreements, including without limitation, change orders, or task orders regarding a public Agreement, I shall, if required by law to file such a statement, provide the statement required by Section 8-13-1150 to the Purchasing Agent at the same time the law required the statement to be filed.

Company Name:	
Ву:	
Print Name:	
Title:	-
Date:	

APPENDIX IV- CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY

Certificate Regarding Debarment, Suspension, or Ineligibility

Rock Hill Schools is a recipient of Federal monies. As such we require that participating vendors not be debarred, suspended, ineligible or excluded from doing business with the Federal government or any agency thereof.

The prospective participant certifies, by submission of the bid, that neither it, nor its principals, is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.

This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Rock Hill School District. If it is later determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, in addition to remedies available to Rock Hill School District, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

Company Name		
Printed Name of Authorized Representative	Title	
Signature of Authorized Representative		
Date		



FCC Form 470 - Funding Year 2024

Form 470 Application Number: 240019511 23-2416 RHSD WIFI ON SCHOOL BUSES

Billed Entity

ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT 3 386 East Black Street ROCK HILL, SC 29730 YORK 803-981-1000

Billed Entity Number: 127242 FCC Registration Number:

Contact Information

Oliver Frail

ofrail@serviceassoc.com

828-337-4188

Number of Eligible Entities: 31

Application Type

Applicant Type: School District

Recipients of Services: Adult Education; Pre-K; Public

School; Public School District

Consulting Firms

Name	Consultant Registration Number	Phone Number	Email
Service Associates Inc	16043663	828-337-4188	ofrail@serviceassoc.com

Consultants

Name	Phone Number	Email
Jamie Tomlinson	704-650-9697	jtomlinson@serviceassoc.com
Oliver Frail	828-337-4188	ofrail@serviceassoc.com

RFPS

ID	Name
177841	RHSD3 23 2416 WIRELESS SCHOOL BUS SERVICES

Category One Service Requests

Service Type	Function	Function Other Description	Minimum Capacity	Maximum Capacity	Entitles	Quantity	Unit	Installation and Initial Configuration?	Associated RFPs
Data Transmission and/or Internet Access	Cellular Data Plan/Air Card Service		5 Gbps	100 Gbps	28	111	Lines	Yes	177841

Description of Other Functions

l .	
I ID	Manage
[]] }	Name
10	1 Tallio
T .	1

Narrative

APPLICANT SEEKS BIDS FOR WIRELESS SCHOOL BUS SERVICE AND (IF APPLICABLE) ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT TO MAKE THE SERVICE FUNCTIONAL TO PROVIDE WI-FI. THANK YOU FOR YOUR INTEREST IN PROVIDING SERVICES TO ROCK HILLS SCHOOL DISTRICT 3. THE DISTRICT INTENDS TO AWARD MULTI YEAR CONTRACTS, FEATURING VOLUNTARY EXTENSIONS. ALL OF THE DISTRICT PROCUREMENT RESTRICTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS ARE DETAILED IN RFP NO 23-2416. PLEASE NOTE: IT IS A REQUIREMENT OF THE SOLICITATION THAT ALL COMMUNICATIONS/QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS FORM 470 BE DIRECTED IN WRITING TO 2024ROCKHILL@DISTRICT.US.COM. THIS EMAIL DISTRIBUTION GROUP INCLUDES BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CONTACTS AT THE DISTRICT. ALL QUESTIONS WILL BE ANSWERED BY ISSUE OF ADDENDA. ATTEMPTS TO CIRCUMVENT THIS PROCESS, BY CONTACTING DISTRICT PERSONNEL DIRECTLY COULD DISQUALIFY A BIDDER FROM THIS PROCUREMENT. PLEASE CAREFULLY REVIEW THE RFP NO. 23-2416. IN PREPARING YOUR RESPONSE, MAKE ANY ASSUMPTIONS NECESSARY, TAKE ANY EXCEPTIONS NECESSARY, AND DOCUMENT EACH. ANY DISPARITY BETWEEN AN APPEALING PROPOSAL AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE DISTRICT WILL BE NEGOTIATED PRIOR TO EXECUTING A CONTRACT.

Category Two Service Requests

Service Type Function	Manufacturer	Manufacturer Other Description	Entitles	Quantity	Unit	installation and initial Configuration?	Associated RFPs
-----------------------	--------------	--------------------------------------	----------	----------	------	---	--------------------

Description of Other Manufacturers

ID	Name

Narrative		
	 	

Technical Contact

State and Local Procurement Restrictions

PLEASE CAREFULLY REVIEW THE "NARRATIVE" SECTION OF THIS FORM AND THE CORRESPONDING RFP. ALL OF THE APPLICABLE STATE AND LOCAL PROCUREMENT RESTRICTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS ARE DETAILED IN THE RFP/ITB. PER THE RFP, QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS PROCUREMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED IN WRITING, BY EMAIL, TO 2024ROCKHILL@DISTRICT.US.COM. ATTEMPTS TO CIRCUMVENT THIS PROCESS, BY CONTACTING DISTRICT PERSONNEL DIRECTLY COULD DISQUALIFY A BIDDER FROM THIS PROCUREMENT.

Billed Entities

Billed Entity Number	Billed Entity Name
127242	ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT 3

Certifications

I certify that the applicant includes:

I certify that the applicant includes schools under the statutory definitions of elementary and secondary schools found in the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, 20 U.S.C. §§ 7801 (18) and (38), that do not operate as for-profit businesses, and do not have endowments exceeding \$50 million.

Other Certifications

I certify that this FCC Form 470 and any applicable RFP will be available for review by potential bidders for at least 28 days before considering all bids received and selecting a service provider. I certify that all bids submitted will be carefully considered and the bid selected will be for the most cost-effective service or equipment offering, with price being the primary factor, and will be the most cost-effective means of meeting educational needs and technology goals.

I certify that I will retain required documents for a period of at least 10 years (or whatever retention period is required by the rules in effect at the time of this certification) after the later of the last day of the applicable funding year or the service delivery deadline for the associated funding request. I certify that I will retain all documents necessary to demonstrate compliance with the statute and Commission rules regarding the form for, receipt of, and delivery of services receiving schools and libraries discounts. I acknowledge that I may be audited pursuant to participation in the schools and libraries program.

I certify that I have reviewed all applicable FCC, state, and local procurement/competitive bidding requirements and that I have complied with them. I acknowledge that persons willfully making false statements on this form may be punished by fine or forfeiture, under the Communications Act, 47 U.S.C. §§ 502, 503(b), or fine or imprisonment under Title 18 of the United States Code, 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

I acknowledge that FCC rules provide that persons who have been convicted of criminal violations or held civilly liable for certain acts arising from their participation in the schools and libraries support mechanism are subject to suspension and debarment from the program.

I certify that the services the applicant purchases at discounts provided by 47 U.S.C. § 254 will be used primarily for educational purposes, see 47 C.F.R. § 54.500, and will not be sold, resold or transferred in consideration for money or any other thing of value, except as permitted by the Commission's rules at 47 C.F.R. § 54.513. Additionally, I certify that the entity or entities listed on this form have not received anything of value or a promise of anything of value, other than services and equipment sought by means

of this form, from the service provider, or any representative or agent thereof or any consultant in connection with this request for services.

I acknowledge that support under this support mechanism is conditional upon the school(s) and/or library(ies) I represent securing access, separately or through this program, to all of the resources, including computers, training, software, internal connections, maintenance, and electrical capacity necessary to use the services purchased effectively. I recognize that some of the aforementioned resources are not eligible for support. I certify that I have considered what financial resources should be available to cover these costs. I certify that I am authorized to procure eligible services for the eligible entity(ies). I certify that I am authorized to submit this request on behalf of the eligible entity(ies) listed on this form, that I have examined this request, and to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, all statements of fact contained herein are true.

NOTICE:

In accordance with Section 54.503 of the Federal Communications Commission's ("Commission") rules, certain schools and libraries ordering services that are eligible for and seeking universal service discounts must file this Description of Services Requested and Certification Form (FCC Form 470) with the Universal Service Administrator. 47 C.F.R. § 54.503. The collection of information stems from the Commission's authority under Section 254 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended. 47 U.S.C. § 254. The data in the report will be used to ensure that schools and libraries comply with the competitive bidding requirement contained in 47 C.F.R. § 54.503. Schools and libraries must file this form themselves or as part of a consortium.

An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.

The FCC is authorized under the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, to collect the information requested in this form. We will use the information you provide to determine whether you have complied with the competitive bidding requirements applicable to requests for universal service discounts. If we believe there may be a violation or a potential violation of any applicable statute, regulation, rule or order, the information you provide in this form may be referred to the Federal, state, or local agency responsible for investigating, prosecuting, enforcing, or implementing the statute, rule, regulation or order. In certain cases, the information you provide in this form may be disclosed to the Department of Justice or a court or adjudicative body when (a) the FCC; or (b) any employee of the FCC; or (c) the United States Government is a party of a proceeding before the body or has an interest in the proceeding. In addition, information provided in or submitted with this form, or in response to subsequent inquiries, may also be subject to disclosure consistent with the Communications Act of 1934, FCC regulations, the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552, or other applicable law.

If you owe a past due debt to the federal government, the information you provide in this form may also be disclosed to the Department of the Treasury Financial Management Service, other Federal agencies and/or your employer to offset your salary, IRS tax refund or other payments to collect that debt. The FCC may also provide the information to these agencies through the matching of computer records when authorized.

If you do not provide the information we request on the form, the FCC or Universal Service Administrator may return your form without action or deny a related request for universal service discounts.

The foregoing Notice is required by the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, Pub. L. No. 104-13, 44 U.S.C. § 3501, et seq.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 3.5 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, completing, and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing the reporting burden to the Federal Communications Commission, Performance Evaluation

and Records Management, Washington, DC 20554. We also will accept your comments via the email if you send them to PRA@FCC.gov. DO NOT SEND COMPLETED WORKSHEETS TO THESE ADDRESSES.

Authorized Person

Oliver Frail
Service Associates Inc
225 Cook Street Rural-Hall, NC 27045
828-337-4188

Certified Timestamp

02/07/2024 04:39 PM EST